
CITY OF HANOVER 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 26, 2022 
OFFICIAL MINUTES 

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 
Stan Kolasa called the September 26, 2022, Planning Commission Meeting to order at 7:00 pm.  Members 
present were Stan Kolasa, Dean Kuitunen, Gretchen Barrett, and John Ganfield.  Also present City Planner 
Cindy Nash, Council Liaison Jim Zajicek and Administrative Assistant Amy Biren.  Member Jim Schendel 
was absent.  Some guests were present 

Approval of Agenda 
MOTION by Kuitunen to approve the amended agenda, seconded by Barrett.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

Approval of Minutes from the August 29, 2022, Regular Meeting 
MOTION by Kuitunen to approve the August 29, 2022, minutes, seconded by Barrett. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

Citizen’s Forum 
None 

Public Hearing 
Preliminary Plat and Rezoning for a Planned Unit Development (PUD) located along River 

Road/CSAH 20 

Kolasa closed the Planning Commission meeting and opened the Public Hearing at 7:02 pm. 

Nash explained that the applicant is asking for a rezoning of the property along the Crow River in 
conjunction with the preliminary plat.  The proposed development along CSAH 20/River Road would have 
single family homes.  Staff memos indicate the items that still need to sorted out and the recommendation 
is for the items to be tabled.  The public hearing will be held and comment taken. 

Nash directed the Board to the preliminary plat and explained that the applicant is only developing the 
residential part on the south side of the road and not the northern portion which is zoned commercial.  There 
will be 25 lots and a number of outlots.  There is an area in the floodplain and a portion of it is shown as an 
outlot.  Lots in the shoreland area need to be larger than the usual single-family residential zoning.  In the 
shoreland, the lots need to be a minimum of 20,000 square feet.  Kuitunen asked for an explanation of the 
difference.  Nash replied that the house needs to be out of the floodplain so the lot needs to be able to 
accommodate that and therefore, the lot size is larger.  Barrett asked how the size of the proposed lots.  Nash 
said they vary and Ganfield said that some of the lots were as small as 12,000 square feet.  Nash said the 
lot sizes would meet the R1 (single-family residential) requirements but not the shoreland requirements. 

Nash indicated that another item that needs to be shown is the location of the trail which is presently shown 
along CSAH 20/River Road.  As shown, there would be a gap in the trail where a resident currently lives. 
Wright County would like to have the trail located along the Crow River with a trailhead.  In addition, the 
City needs to decide if a park is to be located in this area. 

Ganfield asked for confirmation that every lot needs to be 20,000 square feet.  Nash confirmed that every 
lot needs to be that size or larger. 



Paul Otto, engineer for the applicant, explained that the property is very unique and the applicant cannot 
utilize the entire property.  The road takes up a portion of the property.  He stated that the only item being 
requested as part of the PUD is the lot size.  For Outlot E, the applicant would like to work with the City 
regarding if this would be a park or a trailhead.  Outlot A is mostly below the floodplain.  Since right and 
left turn lanes are being required by Wright County to access the development, it has impacted plans.  As 
the trail is presented, the applicant will grade the trail when doing the turn lanes and leave it ready for 
completion by another party.  Areas that are not developed on the property will be left as green space. 
 
Otto said they are asking the Planning Commission to move this forward for approval at the City Council 
level with the conditions from the staff memos.  He stated that nothing has changed from when the concept 
plan was presented and the concept plan was well-received. 
 
Barrett asked if there is a specific number for density within the shoreland area.  Nash said that determining 
density in the shoreland is more complex than the regular R1 zoning as there are tiers to look at and how 
space is used contributes to the density figure.  At this time, there is not a density calculated for this 
development. 
 
Barrett asked when the MN DNR would be reviewing it.  Nash said it would be reviewed at the same time 
that the City is conducting its review. 
 
Ganfield asked if the development would meet the density if the homes were reduced in number.  Nash 
explained they are meeting the density for R1, but need to meet the shoreland density so reducing the 
number of homes would not benefit the applicant. 
 
Otto explained that they are trying to keep the homes away from the setback of the Crow River in order to 
limit the impact by the homeowners on the river.  Barrett expressed appreciation for this action. 
 
Barrett asked about the snowmobile trails that have used this area in the past.  Paul Bursch, 10906 River 
Road, showed on the plat map the area used by the snowmobilers.  Otto said that the snowmobile trail needs 
to have permission from the owner of the property and stated that the trail would not be allowed in the 
development.  Ryan Sunram, applicant, said that there is a Wright County trail corridor and some 
snowmobilers are allowed on the trails.  Nash said that paved trails do not allow snowmobiles or motorized 
vehicles on the trail. 
 
Nash asked Biren to read the emails and letter received at City Hall from residents that could not attend the 
meeting.  The emails from Mike and Jeanne Trullinger and Doug and Sue Lee.  The letter was from 
Christina and Scott Kenney.  Each of the letters expressed understanding that development occurs, but had 
concerns about lot size, traffic, zoning of the northern portion, tree preservation, and the rural feel of 
Hanover.  Each of the emails and letter are attached. 
 
Jerry Hertaus, Westside Realty, explained that the applicant started the original concept plan with 45 
proposed homes and they were aware that water and sewer would need to be installed to the homes in the 
development.  The shoreland requirements were overlooked and the impact of it not realized.  When the 
concept plan was presented to both the Planning Commission and the City Council, it was given the go 
ahead to move to the preliminary plat stage.  Hertaus asked for the Planning Commission to move it forward 
to the City Council with the conditions listed.  They are planning on bringing an application for the north 
side of the property to the Board in the future. 
 
Chris Peterson, 10886 River Road, stated that he doesn’t believe the north side should be zoned commercial 
and expressed displeasure that he was not notified about the Comprehensive Plan.  Nash said that several 
meetings were held for public input regarding the Comprehensive Plan and notices are usually not sent out 



to individual addresses when it encompasses the entire city.  Nash reminded him that the north side is not 
being considered as part of this application, only the south side. 
 
Peterson said he would prefer larger lots. 
 
Kolasa closed the Public Hearing and re-opened the Planning Commission meeting at 7:37 pm. 
 
Kolasa asked for clarification on what was needed from the Planning Commission members.  Nash said 
that both she and Jennifer Edison, City Engineer, recommend tabling the PUD and the preliminary plat as 
there are too many items that need clarification. 
 
Kuitunen asked if the City knew where the trail was going to be prior to this development.  Nash responded 
that it was not known then or currently.  Nash projected the grading plan on the screen to show the Board 
where the developer is proposing to have the trail.  Otto showed the members where the trail was located 
as well as the catch basins located along the trail and stated it is outside of the 15-foot easement. 
 
Kuitunen asked about the homes along CSAH 20/River Road and if they would be closer to the trail and 
the road.  Nash said that the homes have a larger backyard and appear to be meeting the setback from the 
county road.  Otto said that the housing pad as shown is 50x50 square feet.  Nash asked Otto to calculate 
the setback. Otto said it is 85 feet from the road.  Kuitunen expressed concern about people purchasing 
homes that close to CSAH 20/River Road. 
 
Barrett asked if Otto had looked at the shoreland requirements and Otto replied that he had not looked at 
them in depth.  Otto said that by increasing the area required for a lot, it would bring the lots closer to the 
Crow River, but it wouldn’t change the number of houses.  He continued saying that they would like to 
leave as many of the trees along the river as possible.  Nash confirmed the number of lots would not change 
and Otto replied that was correct and that the density needs to be there to make the installation of utilities 
viable. 
 
Barrett said that she understands the concerns of the citizens and would prefer that the lots and homes are 
not closer to the river. 
 
Otto explained that the streets would be maintained by the City and then an HOA would maintain the open 
spaces.  Homeowners would maintain their own properties. 
 
Kuitunen asked Zajicek if there had been any concerns mentioned at the July Council Meeting when the 
concept plan was presented as he could not find anything in the official Council minutes.  Zajicek replied 
not really, only that they were concerned with the north side being commercial and not residential. 
 
Zajicek asked Nash if there would be benefits to Peterson’s property being zoned commercial.  Nash 
explained that Peterson’s property is grandfathered in under the new zoning and there is benefit to it being 
zoned commercially and being located on the county road.  The zoning does not impact how the taxes are 
calculated for the property—how the land is being used impacts the taxes. 
 
Peterson said he is concerned about a future business impacting the people living around it. 
 
MOTION by Barrett to table the planned unit development (PUD) along CSAH 20/River Road, seconded 
by Kuitunen. 
Motion carried. 
 



MOTION by Barrett to table the preliminary plat for the development along CSAH 20/River Road, 
seconded by Kuitunen. 
Motion carried. 

Unfinished Business 
None 

New Business 
None 

Reports and Announcements 
Zajicek said that the open house for the Highway 19 Project had different tables set up with people 

from WSB Engineering answering questions.  He said that he was there between the 6-7 pm hour and it did 
not seem overly crowded.  Kuitunen said he was there during the first hour and there were many people 
there and were asking Justin Messner, head engineer, questions.  Kuitunen said he was most interested in 
the numbers used for the queues and simulations.  Barrett said her biggest concern is exiting from Rosedale 
Avenue/CSAH 123 making the left turn without a stoplight.  The stoplights at least give a traffic break to 
make the turn.  Zajicek expressed concerns about crosswalks and the engineers said that a flashing light 
that occurs when a pedestrian is in the crosswalk is more effective than stoplights. 

Biren explained that there would be two road projects impacting Hanover.  The vehicle bridge 
across the Crow River would be returning to reduced lanes in order to work on the expansion joints.  The 
other project on 109th Avenue N/CSAH 19 just east of Jonquil Lane is a culvert replacement and the road 
will be shut down for a week dependent on weather.  The detour for CSAH 10 should be over by then.  She 
said to watch the website and the Facebook page for updates. 

Adjournment 
MOTION by Kuitunen to adjourn, seconded by Barrett.  
Motion carried unanimously.  
Meeting adjourned at 8:15 pm. 

ATTEST: 

Amy L. Biren 
Administrative Assistant 










